FILE COPY



CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF A PRIVATE LIMITED COMPANY

Company Number 11868256

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales, hereby certifies that

HAUSER REFRIGERATION UK LIMITED

is this day incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 as a private company, that the company is limited by shares, and the situation of its registered office is in England and Wales

Given at Companies House, Cardiff, on 7th March 2019



* N11868256O *







Application to register a company



Received for filing in Electronic Format on the: 07/03/2019

X80QSF4A

Company Name in

full:

HAUSER REFRIGERATION UK LIMITED

Company Type: Private company limited by shares

Situation of

Registered Office:

England and Wales

Proposed Registered
Office Address:

5 OAK COURT, PILGRIMS WALK

PROLOGIS PARK

COVENTRY

UNITED KINGDOM CV6 4QH

Sic Codes: **28250**

Proposed Officers

Company Director 1

Type: Person

Full Forename(s): MARTIN

Surname: **DORNINGER**

Service Address: 5 OAK COURT, PILGRIMS WALK

PROLOGIS PARK

COVENTRY

UNITED KINGDOM CV6 4QH

Country/State Usually

Resident:

AUSTRIA

Date of Birth: **/01/1982 Nationality: AUSTRIAN

Occupation: DIRECTOR

SALES

COUNTRY

The subscribers confirm that the person named has consented to act as a director.

Company Director 2

Type: Person

Full Forename(s): **PETER**

Surname: REITMAYR

Service Address: AM HARTMAYRGUT 4-6

4040 LINZ AUSTRIA

Country/State Usually

AUSTRIA

Resident:

Date of Birth: **/03/1967 Nationality: AUSTRIAN

Occupation: CFO

The subscribers confirm that the person named has consented to act as a director.

Statement of Capital (Share Capital)

Class of Shares: ORDINARY Number allotted 30000 Currency: GBP Aggregate nominal value: 30000

Prescribed particulars

THE SHARES HAVE ATTACHED TO THEM FULL VOTING, DIVIDEND AND CAPITAL DISTRIBUTION (INCLUDING ON WINDING UP) RIGHTS. THEY DO NOT CONFER ANY RIGHTS OF REDEMPTION.

Statement of	Capital (Totals)		
Currency:	GBP	Total number of shares:	30000
•		Total aggregate nominal value:	30000
		Total aggregate unpaid:	0

Initial Shareholdings

Name: HAUSER GMBH

Address AM HARTMAYRGUT 4-6 Class of Shares: ORDINARY

4040 LINZ AUSTRIA

Number of shares: 30000 Currency: GBP

Nominal value of each 1

share:

Amount unpaid: 0
Amount paid: 1

Persons with Significant Control (PSC)				
Statement of initial significant control				
On incorporation, there will be someone who will count as a Person with Significant Control (either a registerable person or relevant legal entity (RLE)) in relation to the company				

11868256

Electronically filed document for Company Number:

Individual Person with Significant Control details

Names: BARBARA DIEM

Country/State Usually

AUSTRIA

Resident:

Date of Birth: **/02/1977 Nationality: AUSTRIAN

Service address recorded as Company's registered office

The subscribers confirm that each person named as an individual PSC in this application knows that their particulars are being supplied as part of this application.

The person holds, directly or indirectly, more than 25% but not Nature of control more than 50% of the shares in the company.

The person holds, directly or indirectly, more than 25% but not Nature of control more than 50% of the voting rights in the company.

11868256

Individual Person with Significant Control details

Names: DR. ERWIN HAUSER

Country/State Usually

AUSTRIA

Resident:

Date of Birth: **/12/1941 Nationality: AUSTRIAN

Service address recorded as Company's registered office

The subscribers confirm that each person named as an individual PSC in this application knows that their particulars are being supplied as part of this application.

The person holds, directly or indirectly, more than 25% but not Nature of control more than 50% of the shares in the company.

The person holds, directly or indirectly, more than 25% but not Nature of control more than 50% of the voting rights in the company.

11868256

Statement of Compliance

I confirm the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as to registration have been complied with.

memorandum delivered by an agent for the subscriber(s): YES

Agent's Name: PRISM COSEC LIMITED

Agent's Address: ELDER HOUSE ST GEORGES BUSINESS PARK

207 BROOKLANDS ROAD

WEYBRIDGE

SURREY

UNITED KINGDOM

KT13 0TS

Authorisation

Authoriser Designation: agent Authenticated YES

Agent's Name: PRISM COSEC LIMITED

Agent's Address: ELDER HOUSE ST GEORGES BUSINESS PARK

207 BROOKLANDS ROAD

WEYBRIDGE

SURREY

UNITED KINGDOM

KT13 0TS

End of Electronically filed document for Company Number:

11868256

COMPANY HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF

Hauser Refrigeration UK Limited

Each subscriber to this memorandum of association wishes to form a company under the Companies Act 2006 and agrees to become a member of the Company and to take at least one share.

Name of each subscriber	Authentication by each subscriber
Hauser GmbH	

Date: 7 March 2019

AXK\20347217v4 22068\0010

Contents

INT	ERPRETATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY	
1.	Definitions and interpretation	1
2.	Liability of Shareholders	3
DIR	ECTORS	
3.	Directors to take decisions collectively	3
4.	Unanimous decisions	3
5.	Calling a directors' meeting	
6.	Participation in directors' meeting	3
7.	Quorum for directors' meetings	4
8.	Casting vote	
9.	Transactions or other arrangements with the Company	4
10.	Directors' conflicts of interest	5
11.	Records of decisions to be kept	6
12.	Number of directors	6
13.	Appointment and removal of directors	6
14.	Alternate directors	7
15.	Company secretary	8
	OTHERS OF CHARGO AND FINANCING PURCHAGE OF CAME CHARGO	
	OTMENT OF SHARES AND FINANCING PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES	
16.	Further issues of Shares: authority	
17.	Financing purchase of own Shares	
PAF	RTLY PAID SHARES: CALLS ON SHARES, LIEN AND FORFEITURE	
18.	Company's Lien over Shares	8
19.	Deduction from dividends	
	CISION MAKING BY SHAREHOLDERS	
20.	Poll votes	9
21.	Proxies	9
22.	Quorum	9
Δ D.II	MINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS	
23.	Means of communication to be used	10
24.	Indemnity	
2 5 .	Insurance	

The Companies Act 2006 Private company limited by shares Articles of association

of

Hauser Refrigeration UK Limited (the "Company")

INTERPRETATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

1. Definitions and interpretation

1.1 In these Articles, unless the context otherwise requires the following words and expressions have the following meanings:

Articles the Company's articles of association for the time

being in force and references to an Article are to

the relevant article of the Articles.

Business Day any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public

holiday in the United Kingdom) on which clearing banks in the City of London are generally open

for business.

CA 2006 the Companies Act 2006.

Company's Lien as defined in Article 18.1.

Conflict as defined in Article 10.1.

Eligible Director a director entitled to vote on a matter at a

meeting of directors (but excluding any director whose vote is not to be counted in respect of that

matter).

Group the Company and every subsidiary and holding

company of the Company and every subsidiary and holding company of such subsidiary and

holding company.

Group Company any company which is a member of the Group.

Model Articles the model articles for private companies limited

by shares contained in schedule 1 of the Companies (Model Articles) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/3229) as amended prior to the date of

adoption of these Articles.

Parent Company any person or company (wherever incorporated)

that, at the relevant time, is registered as holder of, or beneficially owns, not less than 75% in nominal value of the share capital of the

Company.

Proxy Notice a notice in writing given in accordance with

Article 21.1.

Qualifying Person as defined in section 318 CA 2006.

Relevant Loss any loss or liability which has been or may be

incurred by a Relevant Officer in connection with that Relevant Officer's duties or powers in relation to the Company, any associated company or any pension fund or employees' share scheme of the Company or any associated

company.

Relevant Officer any director or other officer or former director or

other officer of the Company or an associated

company.

Shares shares in the Company.

Shareholder a person whose name is entered in the register

of members of the Company as the holder of a

Share.

- 1.2 Except as otherwise provided in these Articles, words and expressions defined in the Model Articles have the same meanings in these Articles, subject to which and unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions which have particular meanings in CA 2006 have the same meanings in these Articles.
- 1.3 Headings in these Articles are used for convenience only and do not affect the construction or interpretation of these Articles.
- 1.4 Unless expressly provided otherwise, a reference to a statute, statutory provision or subordinate legislation is a reference to it as it is in force from time to time, taking account of:
 - 1.4.1 any subordinate legislation from time to time made under it; and
 - 1.4.2 any amendment or re-enactment and includes any statute, statutory provision or subordinate legislation which it amends or re-enacts.
- 1.5 A reference to Clear Days in respect of any specified notice period excludes the date on which the notice is given and the date on which the specified period expires.
- 1.6 Any phrase introduced by the terms **including**, **include**, **in particular** or any similar expression will be construed as illustrative and will not limit the sense of the words preceding those terms.
- 1.7 Companies are **associated** if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries of the same body corporate.
- 1.8 The Model Articles apply to the Company, except in so far as they are modified or excluded by these Articles.
- 1.9 Articles 7, 8, 9(1) and 9(3), 11(2) and (3), 13, 14(1), (2), (3) and (4), 17, 44(2) and (3), 45(1), 52 and 53 of the Model Articles do not apply to the Company.
- 1.10 Article 5 of the Model Articles is amended by the addition of new paragraph 5(4): "The power to delegate under this article includes a power to delegate the

- determination of any fee, remuneration or other benefit which may be paid or provided to any director."
- 1.11 Article 20 of the Model Articles is amended by the insertion of the words "and the company secretary (if any)" before the words "properly incur".
- 1.12 Article 26(1) of the Model Articles is amended by inserting the words "and, unless the share is fully paid, the transferee" after the word "transferor".
- 1.13 Article 29 of the Model Articles is amended by the insertion of the words "or the name of any person named as the transferee in an instrument of transfer executed under article 28(2)," after the words "the transmittee's name".

2. Liability of Shareholders

The liability of the Shareholders is limited to the amount, if any, unpaid on the Shares held by them.

DIRECTORS

3. Directors to take decisions collectively

- 3.1 The general rule about decision making by directors is that any decision of the directors must be either a majority decision at a meeting or a decision taken in accordance with Article 4.
- 3.2 If the Company only has one director for the time being and no provision of these Articles requires it to have more than one director, the general rule does not apply, and the director may (for so long as he remains the sole director) take decisions without regard to any of the provisions of these Articles relating to directors' decision making.

4. Unanimous decisions

- 4.1 A decision of the directors is taken in accordance with Article 4 when all Eligible Directors indicate to each other by any means that they share a common view on a matter.
- 4.2 Such a decision may take the form of a resolution in writing, where each Eligible Director has signed one or more copies of it, or to which each Eligible Director has otherwise indicated agreement in writing.
- 4.3 A decision may not be taken in accordance with Article 4 if the Eligible Directors would not have formed a quorum at a directors' meeting.

5. Calling a directors' meeting

- Any director may call a directors' meeting by giving reasonable notice of the meeting to the directors or by authorising the company secretary (if any) to give such notice.
- Notice of a directors' meeting must be given to each director, but need not be in writing.

6. Participation in directors' meeting

- 6.1 Subject to the articles, directors participate in a directors' meeting, or part of a directors' meeting, when:
 - 6.1.1 the meeting has been called and takes place in accordance with the articles, and
 - 6.1.2 they can each communicate to the others any information or opinions they have on any particular item of the business of the meeting.

- Any director or his or her alternate may validly participate in a directors' meeting through the medium of conference telephone or any other form of communications equipment, provided that all persons participating in the meeting are able to hear and speak to each other throughout such meeting. In determining whether directors (or their alternates) are participating in a directors' meeting, it is irrelevant where any director (or his or her alternate) is or how they communicate with each other and a person so participating by telephone or other communication shall be deemed to be present in person at the meeting and shall be counted in a quorum and entitled to vote.
- 6.3 Where a person is so participating by telephone or other form of communication, such a meeting shall be deemed to take place where the chairman of the meeting then is or at such other location as the directors deem it to be held.

7. Quorum for directors' meetings

- 7.1 Subject to Article 7.2, the quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of directors is any two Eligible Directors.
- 7.2 For the purposes of any meeting (or part of a meeting) held pursuant to Article 10 to authorise a director's Conflict, if there is only one Eligible Director in office other than the conflicted director(s), the quorum for such meeting (or part of a meeting) will be one Eligible Director.
- 7.3 If the total number of directors in office for the time being is less than the quorum required, the directors must not take any decision except for the purposes of:
 - 7.3.1 appointing further directors; or
 - 7.3.2 calling a general meeting so as to enable the Shareholders to appoint further directors.

8. Casting vote

If the numbers of votes for and against a proposal at a meeting of directors are equal, the chairman or other director chairing the meeting will not have a casting vote.

9. Transactions or other arrangements with the Company

Subject to sections 177(5) and 177(6) and sections 182(5) and 182(6) CA 2006 and declaring the nature and extent of his interest in accordance with the requirements of section 177 or 182 CA 2006 (as the case may be), a director who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in an existing or proposed transaction or arrangement with the Company:

- 9.1 may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any transaction or arrangement with the Company or in which the Company is otherwise directly or indirectly interested:
- 9.2 is an Eligible Director for the purposes of any proposed decision of the directors (or committee of directors) in respect of such contract or proposed contract in which he is interested;
- 9.3 may vote at a meeting of directors (or of a committee of the directors) or participate in any unanimous decision, in respect of such contract or proposed contract in which he is interested;
- 9.4 may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company (otherwise than as auditor) and he or his firm will be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if he were not a director;

- 9.5 may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to a transaction or arrangement with, or otherwise interested in, any body corporate in which the Company is otherwise (directly or indirectly) interested; and
- 9.6 will not be accountable to the Company (except as he may otherwise agree) for any benefit which he, or a person connected with him (as defined in section 252 CA 2006), derives from any such contract, transaction or arrangement or from any such office or employment or from any interest in any such body corporate and no such contract, transaction or arrangement will be liable to be avoided on the grounds of any such interest or benefit nor will the receipt of any such remuneration or other benefit constitute a breach of the director's duty under section 176 CA 2006.

10. Directors' conflicts of interest

- 10.1 The directors may, as provided in this Article 10, authorise any matter or situation proposed to them by any director which would or might, if not authorised, involve a director breaching his duty under section 175 CA 2006 to avoid conflicts of interest (Conflict).
- 10.2 Any authorisation of a Conflict will be effective only if:
 - 10.2.1 the matter in question is proposed by any director for consideration at a meeting of directors in the same way that any other matter may be proposed to the directors under the provisions of these Articles or in such other manner as the directors may determine;
 - any requirement as to quorum at the meeting of the directors at which the matter is considered is met without counting the director in question; and
 - the matter is agreed to without the director in question voting or would have been agreed to if his vote had not been counted.
- 10.3 Any authorisation of a Conflict may (whether at the time of giving the authorisation or subsequently):
 - 10.3.1 extend to any actual or potential conflict of interest which may reasonably be expected to arise out of the matter so authorised;
 - 10.3.2 be subject to such terms and for such duration, or impose such limits or conditions as the directors may determine; and
 - 10.3.3 be terminated or varied by the directors at any time.
- 10.4 Anything done by the director in question in accordance with the terms of the authorisation will not be affected by its subsequent termination or variation.
- 10.5 In authorising a Conflict the directors may decide (whether at the time of giving the authorisation or subsequently) that if a director has obtained any information through his involvement in the Conflict otherwise than as a director of the Company and in respect of which he owes a duty of confidentiality to another person, the director is under no obligation, if it would amount to a breach of that confidence, to:
 - 10.5.1 disclose such information to the directors or to any director or other officer or employee of the Company; or
 - 10.5.2 use or apply any such information in performing his duties as a director of the Company.

- 10.6 Where the directors authorise a Conflict they may (whether at the time of giving the authorisation or subsequently) provide, without limitation, that the director in question:
 - 10.6.1 is excluded from discussions (whether at meetings of directors or otherwise) relating to the Conflict;
 - 10.6.2 is not given any documents or other information relating to the Conflict; and
 - 10.6.3 may or may not vote (or may or may not be counted in the quorum) at any future meeting of directors in relation to any resolution relating to the Conflict.
- 10.7 Where the directors authorise a Conflict, the director in question:
 - 10.7.1 will be obliged to conduct himself in accordance with any terms imposed by the directors in relation to the Conflict; and
 - 10.7.2 will not infringe any of the duties he owes to the Company by virtue of sections 171 to 177 CA 2006 if he acts in accordance with any terms, limits and conditions as the directors impose in respect of its authorisation.
- 10.8 A director shall not infringe his duty to avoid a Conflict if the matter or situation which would otherwise result in that director infringing that duty arises out of or results from that director:
 - 10.8.1 being a director, alternate director, officer, employee, consultant or member of any other Group Company; or
 - 10.8.2 being (directly or indirectly) involved with or interested in, any other Group Company,

for the reason that any such matter or situation is authorised by this Article 10.8 and no further authorisation is required in respect of such matter or situation. In addition, any such director:

- 10.8.3 will not be in breach of any other duties he owes to the Company, including the duty to exercise independent judgement, as a result of him being involved in other Group Companies or pension schemes in the manner referred to in this Article 10.8;
- 10.8.4 will not be accountable to the Company for any benefit which he derives from such matter or situation; and
- 10.8.5 will not be required to disclose or use for the benefit of the Company, any confidential information relating to such matter or situation if such disclosure or use would constitute a breach of confidence.

11. Records of decisions to be kept

Where decisions of the directors are taken by electronic means, they must be recorded by the directors in permanent form, so that they may be read with the naked eye.

12. Number of directors

Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution, the number of directors (other than alternate directors) is not subject to any maximum but must not be less than two.

13. Appointment and removal of directors

Any person who is willing to act as a director, and is permitted by law to do so, may be appointed to be a director by ordinary resolution.

- The Parent Company may at any time and from time to time by notice in writing to the Company appoint any person to be a director or the company secretary of the Company or remove from office any director or the company secretary, whether or not appointed by the Parent Company. In the case of an executive director or an executive secretary, his removal from office is deemed an act of the Company and has effect without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract of service between him and the Company.
- 13.3 Without prejudice to Article 13.2, the directors may at any time and from time to time appoint any person as an additional director.

14. Alternate directors

Appointment and removal

- Any director may, in relation to the taking of decisions by the directors in the absence of that director, appoint as an alternate any other person, to:
 - 14.1.1 exercise that director's powers; and
 - 14.1.2 carry out that director's responsibilities.
- Any appointment or removal of an alternate must be effected by notice in writing to the Company signed by the appointor, or in any other manner approved by the directors.
- 14.3 The notice must:
 - 14.3.1 identify the proposed alternate; and
 - 14.3.2 in the case of a notice of appointment, contain a statement signed by the proposed alternate that the proposed alternate is willing to act as the alternate of the director giving the notice.

Rights and responsibilities

- An alternate director may act as alternate director to more than one director and has the same rights in relation to any decision of the directors as the alternate's appointor.
- 14.5 Except as the Articles specify otherwise, alternate directors:
 - 14.5.1 are entitled to receive notice of all meetings of directors and of all meetings of committees of directors of which their respective appointor is a member;
 - 14.5.2 are deemed for all purposes to be directors;
 - 14.5.3 are liable for their own acts and omissions;
 - 14.5.4 are subject to the same restrictions as their appointors; and
 - 14.5.5 are not deemed to be agents of or for their appointors.
- 14.6 A person who is an alternate director but not a director:
 - 14.6.1 may be counted as participating for the purposes of determining whether a quorum is present (but only if that person's appointor is not participating);
 - 14.6.2 may participate in a unanimous decision of the directors (but only if his appointor is an Eligible Director in relation to that decision and does not participate); and
 - 14.6.3 will not be counted as more than one director for the purposes of Articles 14.6.1 and 14.6.2.

14.7 An alternate director is not entitled to receive any remuneration from the Company for serving as an alternate director except for any such part of his appointor's remuneration as the appointor may direct by notice in writing to the Company.

Termination

- 14.8 An appointment as an alternate director terminates:
 - 14.8.1 when the alternate director's appointor revokes the appointment by notice to the Company in writing specifying when it is to terminate;
 - 14.8.2 on the occurrence, in relation to the alternate director, of any event which, if it occurred in relation to his appointor, would result in the termination of the appointor's appointment as a director;
 - 14.8.3 on the death of the alternate director's appointor; or
 - 14.8.4 when the alternate director's appointor's appointment as a director terminates.

15. Company secretary

The Parent Company may appoint any person who is willing to act as the company secretary for such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions as it may think fit and from time to time remove such person and, if the Parent Company so decides, appoint a replacement.

ALLOTMENT OF SHARES AND FINANCING PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES

Further issues of Shares: authority

- 16.1 Except as authorised by these Articles, or authorised from time to time by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders or by a written resolution in accordance with section 282(2) CA 2006, and subject to Article 16.3, the directors must not exercise any power of the Company to allot Shares or to grant rights to subscribe for, or to convert any security into, any Shares.
- Subject to the remaining provisions of Article 16, the directors are generally and unconditionally authorised, for the purpose of section 551 CA 2006, to exercise any power of the Company to offer or allot, grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into or otherwise deal in, or dispose of, any Shares to any person, at any time and subject to any terms and conditions as the directors think fit.
- 16.3 The directors must not without the prior written consent of the Parent Company exercise any power of the Company to allot Shares or to grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, any Shares.

17. Financing purchase of own Shares

The Company may purchase its own Shares with cash in accordance with section 692(1ZA) CA 2006.

PARTLY PAID SHARES: CALLS ON SHARES, LIEN AND FORFEITURE

18. Company's Lien over Shares

18.1 The Company has a lien (Company's Lien) over every Share, whether or not fully paid, which is registered in the name of any person indebted or under any liability to the Company, whether he is the sole registered holder of the Share or one of several joint holders, for all monies payable by him (either alone or jointly with any other person) to the Company and whether payable immediately or in the future.

- 18.2 The Company's Lien over a Share:
 - 18.2.1 takes priority over any third party's interest in that Share; and
 - 18.2.2 extends to any dividend or other money payable by the Company in respect of that Share and (if the lien is enforced and the Share is sold by the Company) the proceeds of sale of that Share.
- 18.3 The directors may at any time decide that a Share which is or would otherwise be subject to the Company's Lien will not be subject to it, either wholly or in part.

19. Deduction from dividends

The directors may deduct from any dividend payable on or in respect of a Share all sums of money presently payable by the Shareholder to the Company on any account whatsoever.

DECISION MAKING BY SHAREHOLDERS

- Poll votes
 - 20.1 A poll may be demanded at any general meeting by any Qualifying Person present and entitled to vote at the meeting.
 - 20.2 A demand for a poll may be withdrawn if:
 - 20.2.1 the poll has not yet been taken; and
 - 20.2.2 the chairman of the meeting consents to the withdrawal.
 - 20.3 A demand withdrawn as prescribed in Article 20.2 will not invalidate the result of a show of hands declared before the demand was made.

21. Proxies

- 21.1 Proxies may only validly be appointed by a Proxy Notice in writing which:
 - 21.1.1 states the name and address of the Shareholder appointing the proxy;
 - 21.1.2 identifies the person appointed to be that Shareholder's proxy and the general meeting in relation to which that person is appointed;
 - 21.1.3 is signed by or on behalf of the Shareholder appointing the proxy, or is authorised in such manner as the directors may determine; and
 - 21.1.4 is delivered to the Company in accordance with these Articles not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the general meeting or adjourned meeting at which the right to vote is to be exercised and in accordance with any instructions contained in the notice of the general meeting (or adjourned meeting) to which they relate. In calculating the period specified in this Article 21.1.4 there will be disregarded any day or part of a day which is not a Business Day.
- 21.2 A Proxy Notice which is not delivered as provided by Article 21.1 will be invalid, unless the directors, in their discretion, accept the notice at any time before the meeting.

22. Quorum

A duly authorised representative of the Parent Company appointed by a resolution of the board of the Parent Company is a quorum at any general meeting of the Company provided that proper notice of the meeting has been given.

Articles of association

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

23. Means of communication to be used

- Any notice, document or other information will be deemed served on or delivered to the intended recipient:
 - 23.1.1 if properly addressed and sent by prepaid United Kingdom first class post to an address in the United Kingdom, 48 hours after it was posted, or three Business Days after posting either to a postal address outside the United Kingdom or from outside the United Kingdom to a postal address within the United Kingdom, if (in each case) sent by reputable international courier addressed to the intended recipient:
 - 23.1.2 if properly addressed and delivered by hand, when it was given or left at the appropriate address;
 - 23.1.3 if properly addressed and sent or supplied by electronic means, one hour after the document or information was sent or supplied; or
 - 23.1.4 if sent or supplied by means of a website, when the material is first made available on the website or (if later) when the recipient receives (or is deemed to have received) notice of the fact that the material is available on the website.
- For the purposes of calculating any period referred to in Article 23 there will be disregarded any part of a day which is not a Business Day.
- 23.3 In proving that any notice, document or other information was properly addressed, it will be sufficient to show that the notice, document or other information was delivered to an address permitted for the purpose by CA 2006.

24. Indemnity

- Subject to Article 24.3, but without prejudice to any indemnity to which a Relevant Officer is otherwise entitled each Relevant Officer may be indemnified out of the Company's assets against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities (including any liability incurred in defending any civil or criminal proceedings in which judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or the proceedings are otherwise disposed of without any finding or admission of any material breach of duty on his part, or in connection with any application in which the court grants him relief from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the Company's (or any associated company's) affairs) incurred by him as a Relevant Officer in the actual or purported execution or discharge of his duties, or in relation to them.
- 24.2 The Company may provide any Relevant Officer with funds to meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him in connection with any proceedings or application referred to in Article 24.1 and otherwise may take any action to enable any such Relevant Officer to avoid incurring such expenditure.
- Article 24 does not authorise any indemnity which would be prohibited or rendered void by any provision of CA 2006 or by any other provision of law.

25. Insurance

The directors may decide to purchase and maintain insurance, at the expense of the Company, for the benefit of any Relevant Officer in respect of any Relevant Loss.